

# **City of Fort Bragg**

416 N Franklin Street Fort Bragg, CA 95437 Phone: (707) 961-2823 Fax: (707) 961-2802

# Meeting Agenda

# **Special City Council**

Thursday, March 4, 2021	1:30 PM	Via Video Conference
	AND THE FORT BRAGG REDEVELOPMENT SUCCESSOR AGENCY	
	THE FORT BRAGG MUNICIPAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1	
	THE FORT BRAGG CITY COUNCIL MEETS CONCURRENTLY AS	

Special Joint City Council/MCRPD Meeting - CV Starr Mid-Year Budget Review

#### CALL TO ORDER

ROLL CALL

#### PLEASE TAKE NOTICE

DUE TO THE PROVISIONS OF THE GOVERNOR'S EXECUTIVE ORDERS N-25-20 AND N-29-20 WHICH SUSPEND CERTAIN REQUIREMENTS OF THE BROWN ACT, AND THE ORDER OF THE HEALTH OFFICER OF THE COUNTY OF MENDOCINO TO SHELTER IN PLACE TO MINIMIZE THE SPREAD OF COVID-19, CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS AND STAFF WILL BE PARTICIPATING BY VIDEO CONFERENCE IN THE SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF THURSDAY, MARCH 4, 2021.

In compliance with the Shelter-in-Place Orders of the County and State, the Town Hall Council Chamber will be closed to the public. The meeting will be live-streamed on the City's website at https://city.fortbragg.com/ and on Channel 3. Public Comment regarding matters on the agenda may be made in any of the following ways: (1) By joining the Zoom video conference and using the Raise Hand feature during Public Comment, (2) Through the City's online eComment agenda feature, (3) By emailing comments to City Clerk June Lemos, jlemos@fortbragg.com, (4) By delivering written comments through the drop-box for utility payments to the right of the front door at City Hall, 416 N. Franklin Street, or (5) By leaving a voice mail comment at (707) 961-1694 by 12:30 PM on the day of the meeting.

The Clerk will read aloud all eComments or emails received before or during the meeting that have not been published with the agenda packet. Public comments are restricted to three minutes. Written comments on agendized matters and those exceeding three minutes will be included in the public record as part of the agenda packet the next business day after the meeting.

We appreciate your patience and willingness to protect the health and wellness of our community and staff. If you have any questions regarding this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (707) 961-1694 or *jlemos@fortbragg.com*.

#### ZOOM WEBINAR INVITATION

You are invited to a Zoom webinar. When: Mar 4, 2021 01:30 PM Pacific Time (US and Canada) Topic: Special Joint City Council/MCRPD Meeting - CV Starr Mid-Year Budget Review

Please click the link below to join the webinar: https://zoom.us/j/99415921510

Or iPhone one-tap :

US: +16699009128,,99415921510# or +12532158782,,99415921510#

Or Telephone:

Dial(for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location):

US: +1 669 900 9128 or +1 253 215 8782 or +1 346 248 7799 or +1 646 558 8656 or +1 301 715 8592 or +1 312 626 6799

Webinar ID: 994 1592 1510

International numbers available: https://zoom.us/u/adsEQfhLs

TO SPEAK DURING THE PUBLIC COMMENT PORTION OF THE AGENDA VIA ZOOM, PLEASE JOIN THE MEETING AND USE THE RAISE HAND FEATURE WHEN THE MAYOR OR ACTING MAYOR CALLS FOR PUBLIC COMMENT.

#### **1. CONDUCT OF BUSINESS**

**1A.** 21-092
 Conduct Joint City Council/Mendocino Coast Recreation & Park District Board Work Session for C.V. Starr Community Center FY 2020/21 Mid-Year Budget Review

Attachments: FY2021 CVSCC Midyear Budget Report CV Starr Financial Statements FY 19/20

)ss.

#### ADJOURNMENT

STATE OF CALIFORNIA )

COUNTY OF MENDOCINO

I declare, under penalty of perjury, that I am employed by the City of Fort Bragg and that I caused this agenda to be posted in the City Hall notice case on March 2, 2021.

June Lemos, CMC City Clerk

#### NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC:

#### DISTRIBUTION OF ADDITIONAL INFORMATION FOLLOWING AGENDA PACKET DISTRIBUTION:

• Materials related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Council/District/Agency after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public inspection upon making reasonable arrangements with the City Clerk for viewing same during normal business hours.

• Such documents are also available on the City of Fort Bragg's website at https://city.fortbragg.com subject to staff's ability to post the documents before the meeting.

#### ADA NOTICE AND HEARING IMPAIRED PROVISIONS:

It is the policy of the City of Fort Bragg to offer its public programs, services and meetings in a manner that is readily accessible to everyone, including those with disabilities. Upon request, this agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities.

If you need assistance to ensure your full participation, please contact the City Clerk at (707) 961-2823. Notification 48 hours in advance of any need for assistance will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility.

This notice is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (28 CFR, 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II).

# **City of Fort Bragg**



416 N Franklin Street Fort Bragg, CA 95437 Phone: (707) 961-2823 Fax: (707) 961-2802

Text File File Number: 21-092

#### Agenda Date: 3/4/2021

Version: 1

Status: Business

In Control: Special City Council

File Type: Staff Report

Agenda Number: 1A.

Conduct Joint City Council/Mendocino Coast Recreation & Park District Board Work Session for C.V. Starr Community Center FY 2020/21 Mid-Year Budget Review

# C.V. Starr Community Center

# Sigrid & Harry Spath Aquatic Facility

# MIDYEAR BUDGET REPORT FY2020-2021

# C.V. STARR COMMUNITY CENTER

Ĩ.

www.mendocoastrec.org

300 S Lincoln Street, Fort Bragg, CA 95437

The C. V. Starr Community Center (CVSCC) FY2020-2021 Midyear Budget Report is prepared for the Fort Bragg City Council and Mendocino Coast Recreation & Park District (MCRPD) Board in accordance with the operating agreement between the two associated entities.

The Center is operating in accordance with the approved FY2020-2021 budget. The proposed FY2020-2021 midyear budget has been developed to provide the most realistic forecast possible, given the information available to staff at the time.



Mendocino Coast Recreation and Park District Board of Directors

> Barbara Burkey, Chair Leslie Bates, Vice Chair Angela Dominguez, Secretary Bob Bushansky, Board Member John Huff, Board Member

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

Overview	4
July 2020 - December 2020	
January 2021 - June 2021	
Budget summary	5
Operating Revenues	6
General Admissions	6
Rentals	6
Registrations	6
Merchandise	6
Miscellaneous	6
Operating Expenses	7
Wages and Benefits	7
Utilities	7
Outreach	
Maintenance	
Operations	
Other Expenses	8
Capital Improvements	9
Leisure Pool Boiler	9
HVAC Programmer	9
IT System Update	9
Pool Vacuum	
Wattstopper	9
Facility Floor Resurfacing	9
Other Revenues - CV Starr Enterprise Fund	_ 10
Sales Tax	10
Property Tax	10
Reserves	10
Capital Improvement Program	10

# **OVERVIEW**

# July 2020 - December 2020

The first six months of FY2020-2021 were not as active as they would be in a "typical" year sans the pandemic, however, with the very limited staff, the CVSCC and MCRPD were able to put on and participate in a few events and accomplish some projects.

- Additional staff was brought back in October.
- In October, CVSCC and MCRPD, in collaboration with the City of Fort Bragg and Fort Bragg Unified School District, put on the first Drive-Thru Trick or Treat in Fort Bragg. There were many participants who came to collect candy at various locations on the route.
- In December, CVSCC and MCRPD staff participated in the annual lighted truck parade as well as hosted visits with Santa throughout the month. Participants were able to bring their letters to Santa and those who left a return address received one back from the North Pole.
- Utilities have remained far below the budgeted amounts which have increased savings for first half of the fiscal year.
- The LED Lighting project work has been completed and on-bill financing will be commencing soon.

### January 2021 – June 2021

Anticipating the facility to remain closed through June 2021, CVSCC/MCRPD staff have been planning on what the next six months will look like. The following are objectives that staff have completed or would like to complete by the end of the fiscal year.

- In December, during a storm, one section of the skylight in the middle of the roof had failed and pieces were breaking off creating a hole in the roof. After being unable to find a contractor to fix the section, maintenance staff rented a 130ft boom lift and removed the broken section and replaced it with sheet metal. The entire span of skylights will need to be replaced in the next few years along with work along the entire roof.
- The waterslide stairs need to undergo rust removal and painting.
- The interior of the Starr Center has various painting sections that need to be completed.
- The exterior of the building requires caulking on the siding.
- The front desk area needs to have safety measures installed, such as plexiglass for a barrier between staff and the public.
- Locker room shower heads need to be removed and cleaned, as well as a general deep cleaning of all rooms.
- The Air Handling Unit (AHU) drains need to be cleaned.
- The dog park and skate park fence need to be repaired.
- The parking lot light poles need to undergo rust removal and painting.
- The maintenance shed needs to be organized and re-designed.

# **BUDGET SUMMARY**

Description	FY18/19 Audited Results	FY19/20 Audited Results	FY20/21 Adopted Budget	FY20/21 Actuals as of 12/31/2020	% Variance at Mid-year	FY20/21 Projection	Variance FY20/21 Adopted Budget vs. FY20/21 Midyear Projection
Operating Revenue							favorable
Operating Revenue General Admission Rentals Registration Merchandise	\$ 571,718 50,241 74,977 7,726	\$ 391,013 34,966 33,443 4,057	\$ 270,738 19,231 24,574 2,874	\$ (426) - -	0% 0% 0%	\$ (1,000) - -	(unfavorable) \$ (271,738) (19,231) (24,574) (2,874)
Miscellaneous	6,745	2,239	1,769	214	0%	428	(1,341)
Total Operating Revenue	711,407	465,718	319,186	(212)	0%	(572)	(319,758)
Operating Expense Wages and Benefits Utilities	995,222 274,452	858,921 183,177	576,693 196,379	97,159 25,583	17% 13%	288,227 77,942	288,466 118,437
Outreach	32,643	12,218	13,800		0%	12,800	1,000
Maintenance	145,095	89,219	62,424	16,381	26%	67,585	(5,161)
Operations	191,503	232,543	141,502	57,324	41%	152,040	(10,538)
Other Expenses	29,265	24,856	14,500	5,000	34%	18,107	(3,607)
Total Operating Expense	1,668,180	1,400,933	1,005,298	201,447	20%	616,702	388,596
Total Expenses	1,668,180	1,400,933	1,005,298	201,447	20%	616,702	388 <mark>,</mark> 596
Net Revenue (Expense)	(956,773)	(935,215)	(686,112)	(201,659)		(617,274)	- (68,838)
Enterprise Fund Allocation for Operations	956,773	935,215	686,112	201,659		617,274	68,838
Net Operating Income	\$-	\$-	\$ -	\$-		\$-	- \$ -
Capital Improvements Prior Year Captial Improvements	12,786	91,234	-	-	00/	-	-
Leisure Pool Boiler Mens Bathroom Floor	-		8,000	-	0% 0%	20,000	(20,000) 8,000
HVAC Programmer			8,500	-	0%	15,327	(6,827)
IT System Update	-	-		-	0%	15,282	(15,282)
Pool Vacuum	-	-	-	-	0%	5,400	(5,400)
Total Facility Improvements Enterprise Fund Allocation for Facility	12,786	91,234	16 <mark>,</mark> 500	-	-	56,009	(39,509)
Improvements	(12,786)	(91,234)	(16,500)	-	0%	(56,009)	39 <mark>,</mark> 509
Floor Drains Project	_	_	-	-	0%	_	_
Pool Basin Resurfacing	-	247,490	-	-	0%	-	-
Wattstopper	16,735	· -	-	-	0%	69,673	(69,673)
Facility Floor Resurfacing	-	-	-	-	0%	400,000	(400,000)
Enterprise Capital Projects - City Managed	(16,735)	(247,490)	-	-	0%	(469,673)	469,673
Total Capital Improvements	29,521	338,724	16,500	-	0%	525,682	(509,182)
		Enterp	rise Fund Sun	nmary - From (	City CAFR/Bu	dget	
	FY18/19	FY19/20	FY20/21				
Enterprise Fund	Audited Results	Audited Results	Adopted Budget			FY20/21 Projection	Variance
Beginning Unrestricted Net Position Operating Revenue	\$ 874,690 711,205	\$ 702,390 465,718	\$ 306,884 319,185			\$ 306,884 (572)	\$ - (319,757)

Beginning Unrestricted Net Position	\$	874,690	\$	702,390	\$	306,884	\$ 306,884	\$ -
Operating Revenue		711,205		465,718		319,185	(572)	(319,757)
Sales Tax Revenue		878,737		944,770		519,000	904,100	385,100
Property Tax Revenue		249,499		236,185		242,000	242,000	-
Non-Operating Revenue		18,024		15,227		10,000	10,000	-
Operating Expense	(1	,993,643)	(1	,718,682)	(1	1,005,298)	(616,702)	388,596
Non-Operating Expense		(6,601)		-		-	-	-
Capital Assets Net of Debt payments		(29,521)		(338,724)		(16,500)	(525,682)	(509,182)
Unrestricted Net Position	\$	702,390	\$	306,884	\$	375,271	\$ 320,029	\$ (55,243)
								-
Operating Reserve	\$	411,140	\$	498,411	\$	429,671	\$ 429,671	\$ -
Capital Repair & Equip Reserve		291,251		(191,526)		(54,399)	(109,642)	(55,243)
Unrestricted Net Position	\$	702,390	\$	306,884	\$	375,271	\$ 320,029	\$ (55,243)

# **OPERATING REVENUES**

# **General Admissions**

General admission revenue consists of user fees collected through drop-in visits, the sale of memberships and other admissions. Due to the facility closure, only refunds have been issued to patrons requesting them.

# Rentals

Rental revenue is collected for private rentals of facilities, such as birthday party room rentals or pool rentals by swim teams. There is no rental revenue projected for the remainder of the fiscal year.

# Registrations

Registration revenue is collected for registered activities, such as enrichment programs or swimming lessons. There are no registrations projected for the remainder of the fiscal year.

# Merchandise

Merchandise revenue is collected for the sale of retail items or extra staff uniforms. There are no merchandise sales projected for the remainder of the fiscal year.

# Miscellaneous

Miscellaneous revenue includes items such as vending machine commission, COBRA administrative fees and other revenue that does not fall into any of the previous categories.





# **OPERATING EXPENSES**

# Wages and Benefits

Wages and benefits account for the monetary compensation paid to employees, healthcare benefits, workers compensation insurance, state unemployment insurance, state employment training tax, federal insurance contribution act tax (FICA), and federal Medicare tax. The proposed FY2020-2021 wages and benefits are \$288,227.

Staff is proposing the recruitment of two full time positions as well bringing a current part time staff to full time. The proposed Mid-Year staffing increases from the current 6.50 FTE's to 9.00 FTE's. The two full time additional positions are a Maintenance Worker and a Recreation Coordinator. The Maintenance Worker will be assisting with a list of tasks that are deemed necessary to complete before reopening and are not obtainable with current staffing levels. The Recreation Coordinator will be assisting the Recreation Supervisor with new policies and planning for the reopening of the Center as well as assist in any recreation programming that can be offered during the closure.

MCRPD & CVSCC	CVSCC FTE	MCRPD FTE	TOTAL FTE
Finance Officer	0.50	0.50	1.00
Business Manager/Co-Director	0.50	0.50	1.00
Administrative Services Supervisor/Co-Director	0.50	0.50	1.00
Administrative Coordinator	0.50	0.50	1.00
Recreation Supervisor	0.50	0.50	1.00
Recreation Coordinator	0.70	0.30	1.00
Maintenance Supervisor	0.80	0.20	1.00
Maintenance Worker	1.60	0.40	2.00
Total	5.60	3.40	9.00

# Utilities

Utilities include propane, electricity, water, and sewer service. The proposed FY2020-2021 budget amount for utility expense is expected to be \$77,942, which is decreased from the prior year due to the facility closure. During the facility closure, higher than anticipated savings have come from low utility costs. Utilities are split between MCRPD and CVSCC.

Utilities have been much lower than originally anticipated with the facility being closed.

Utilities:

Electricity	
Propane	
Water	

# Outreach

Outreach expenditures are for the marketing of the Center, such as advertisements in local publications brochure production, and community sponsorships. The proposed outreach expense for FY2020-2021 is \$12,800. Once the facility begins its reopening a big marketing push will occur.

### Maintenance

Maintenance includes pool chemicals, repair parts, grounds keeping, tools, equipment and other maintenance related supplies and services. The proposed maintenance expense for FY2020-2021 is \$67,585. There are many modifications that need to be made to the facility prior to reopening as a result of COVID-19 prevention and safety measures. New disinfecting tools and equipment are necessary for hosting a safe environment for patrons and staff alike.

### **Operations**

Operations account for attorney services, engineering services, bank fees, communications, janitorial supplies, insurance, laundry service, office supplies, permits, postage/shipping, program supplies, recruitment, training, and uniforms. Operation expenses for FY2020-2021 are budgeted at \$152,040. The decrease is due removing any travel, training, honorarium, and programming supplies that were deemed not critical for operations.

Dues, memberships and subscriptions	50% MCRPD; 50% CVSCC
Information technology (IT) equipment	50% MCRPD; 50% CVSCC
Information technology (IT) services	50% MCRPD; 50% CVSCC

### **Other Expenses**

Other expenses include interest payments, property tax administration, LAFCO, (Local Agency Formation Commission), and COFB administration fee in the amount of \$10,000. For FY2020-2021, the projected amount is \$18,107.



# **CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS**

The Center currently requires \$525,682 in capital improvements that will ideally be completed prior to the facility reopening. \$56,009 will be managed by the District and \$469,673 will be managed by the City of Fort Bragg.

# Leisure Pool Boiler

The Leisure Pool Boiler needs to be replaced this year. The existing boiler melted a burner tube. After speaking with several technicians, the issue seems to stem from environmental factors; chlorine and salt air are the worst conditions for any type of propane combustion chamber. The anticipated cost of a replacement boiler is \$20,000.

# **HVAC Programmer**

The HVAC Programmer has been found to be nearing the end of its serviceable life. The HVAC programmer controls the heating, ventilation, temperature, and pressure of the building. The cost of replacement for the programmer is expected to be \$15,327.

# IT System Update

Provided for the purchase and installation of a new VM Host & UPS to replace the existing ESXi Host (server) for the CV Starr Center's computer system. The replacement schedule for this system has been recommended by KLH, the District's contracted IT Service provider. The replacement server is projected to cost \$15,282 for the CVSCC portion and \$15,282 will be paid by MCRPD. This update will also allow for off-site working capabilities.

# **Pool Vacuum**

The Center currently does not have a functioning pool vacuum, and this is essential for reopening. The pool vacuum is a few years old and has stopped working. The pool vacuum will cost approximately \$5,400.

# Wattstopper

The existing wattstopper unit serves as a master lighting control for the entire facility. The current wattstopper is at the end of its dependable life expectancy. There are no longer any replacement parts available nor any IT support offered for the system in place. The projected expense for a new, up to date, wattstopper is \$69,673.

# Facility Floor Resurfacing

The two locker rooms and two front restrooms flooring are deteriorating and poses a safety risk to patrons upon reopening. The reason for such a fast decline in the floors is the high groundwater level underneath the facility. Recently, staff have learned that the cement under the locker room may not have been sealed and treated correctly for the high-water level. The degradation of the floors is causing chipping, leaving sharp exposed shard which is potential safety hazard for patrons and staff. The expected cost of this project is \$400,000.

# OTHER REVENUES – CV STARR ENTERPRISE FUND

### Sales Tax

The CVSCC receives from the State Board of Equalization a voter approved half-cent sales tax that is held by the City of Fort Bragg in the CV Starr Enterprise Fund, per the operating agreement between MCRPD and the City. All proceeds from the sales tax are dedicated to operation, maintenance, and capital improvements at the C. V. Starr Community Center in compliance with the Fort Bragg Municipal Code Chapter 3.11 (Ordinance No. 902, passed 03-06-2012). Sales tax revenues are estimated to end the FY2020-2021 at \$904,100 which is drastically higher than originally budgeted.

### **Property Tax**

Pursuant to the Property Tax Exchange Agreement between the MCRPD and the City of Fort Bragg, property taxes received from the Mendocino County Tax Collector with 45% of the Districts allocable share being entitled to the City to be used solely for parks and recreation purposes with the City (including CVSCC). The property tax revenue is expected to come in at \$242,000 for FY2020-2021.

### Reserves

Given the proposed FY2020-2021 operating budget, capital improvements and estimated tax revenue, the CVSCC Enterprise Fund is projected to end the year with an unrestricted net balance of \$320,029. The Funds are separated as follows; Operating Reserve, is 25% of the prior year projected operating expenditures, and the Capital Reserve which absorbs any excess amount above what goes into the Operating Reserve.

### **Capital Improvement Program**

The following facility capital improvements have been identified for the next five years for projects that exceed \$50,000.

CV STARR COMMUNITY CENTER CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM	FY 20-21	FY 21-22	FY 22-23	FY 23-24	FY 24-25	TOTAL PROJECT COSTS
WATT STOPPER	69,673.00					69,673.00
LOCKER ROOM AND RESTROOM FLOORING	400,000.00					400,000.00
UV SYSTEM - COMP AND LEISURE		160,600.00				160,600.00
HVAC AIR INTAKE PROJECT			160,000.00			160,000.00
FACILITY ROOF REPAIR				375,000.00		375,000.00
WATER SLIDE STAIRCASE					150,000.00	150,000.00
TOTAL	469,673.00	160,600.00	160,000.00	375,000.00	150,000.00	1,315,273.00

#### CV STARR COMMUNITY AND AQUATIC CENTER

#### **BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS**

JUNE 30, 2020

This page intentionally left blank.

# CV Starr Community and Aquatic Center Basic Financial Statements For the year ended June 30, 2020

### **Table of Contents**

Pag	<u>e</u>
Independent Auditors' Report1	
Basic Financial Statements:	
Statement of Net Position	
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position	
Statement of Cash Flows	
Notes to Basic Financial Statements	,
Supplementary Schedules:	
Schedule of Debt Service Coverage14	
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position to the City of Fort Bragg15	
Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with <i>Government Auditing Standards</i>	,

This page intentionally left blank.

JJACPA, Inc.



A Professional Accounting Services Corp.

#### **INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT**

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council of the City of Fort Bragg Fort Bragg, California

#### **Report on the Financial Statements**

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the CV Starr Community and Aquatic Center (Center) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Center's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

#### Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

#### Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Governmental Auditing Standards*, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risk of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinions.

#### **Opinions**

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the Center as of June 30, 2020, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

#### **Other Matters**

Management has omitted management's discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Our opinion on the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing information.

#### **Other Information**

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the Center's basic financial statements. The Schedule of Debt Service and Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position to the City of Fort Bragg are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The Schedule of Debt Service and Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position to the City of Fort Bragg has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.

#### Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with *Government Auditing Standards*, we have also issued our report dated January 29, 2021 on our consideration of the Center's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the Center's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

, J.J.ACPH, Inc.

January 29, 2021

JJACPA, Inc. Dublin, CA

# **BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS**

# CV Starr Community Center Statement of Net Position June 30, 2020 (with comparative balances for June 30, 2019)

ASSETS	 2020	 2019
Current assets: Cash equivalents and investments Accounts receivable Inventory	\$ 42,404 33,538 996	\$ 290,598 77,689 978
Total assets	\$ 76,938	\$ 369,265
LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION		
Current liabilities: Accounts payable Accrued payroll and benefits Gift certificates payable Due to MCRPD Unearned revenue Compensated absences Total liabilities	\$ 43,417 6,390 5,184 1,947 <u>15,218</u> 72,156	\$ 84,953 21,118 3,507 - 13,206 30,128 152,912
Net position: Unrestricted (deficit) Total net position	 4,782	 216,353 216,353
Total liabilities and net position	\$ 76,938	\$ 369,265

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.

#### CV Starr Community Center Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position For the year ended June 30, 2020 (with comparative balances for the year ended June 30, 2019)

	2020	2019		
OPERATING REVENUES:	 			
Charges for services:				
Program service charges	\$ 457,398	\$ 695,767		
Total operating revenues	 457,398	695,767		
OPERATING EXPENSES:				
Administration	26,020	31,187		
Bank Fees	17,937	16,974		
Communications	3,050	2,894		
County/LAFCO Fees	-	5,233		
Domain and Internet	2,841	3,057		
Dues and Memberships	1,065	5,041		
Enrichment Programs	7,153	4,329		
Facility Equipment	19,367	29,689		
Fitness Programs	1,318	5,693		
Guest Services	734	531		
Honorarium	1,666	1,910		
Insurance	43,296	40,040		
IT Equipment	31,950	18,813		
Laundry Rental Service	2,977	3,585		
Contractual services	5,151	10,374		
Licenses and Permits	9,945	4,108		
Marketing	12,218	20,942		
Miscellaneous	485	1,155		
Office Supplies	3,663	5,285		
Pool Supplies	27,200	35,616		
Postage and Shipping	762	736		
Printing and Duplication	-	11,701		
Program Expenses	-	-		
Recruitment	185	745		
Rentals/Leases	5,731	7,979		
Repairs and Maintenance	66,705	78,154		
Salaries and benefits	860,079	997,226		
Security and Alarm Monitoring	2,311	504		
Staff Memberships	- 100	-		
Staff Training	5,428	5,065		
Supplies	34,726	34,161		
Travel	5,978	10,881		
Utilities	 184,065	274,716		
Total operating expenses	 1,384,006	1,668,324		
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)	 (926,608)	(972,557)		
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):				
Refunds and rebates	-	1,500		
Donations	909	431		
Merchandise sales, net	4,057	7,726		
Tax allocation from the City of Fort Bragg	711,687	1,268,469		
Interest and debt service expenses	2	-		
Other non-operating expenses	 (1,618)	(32,683)		
Total non-operating revenues (expenses)	 715,037	1,245,443		
Net income (loss)	 (211,571)	272,886		
NET POSITION:				
Beginning of year	 216,353	(56,533)		

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.

# CV Starr Community Center Statement of Cash Flows For the year ended June 30, 2020 (with comparative balances for the year ended June 30, 2019)

		2020	2019
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:			
Receipts from customers	\$	488,343	\$ 732,223
Payments to vendors for services and supplies		(563,804)	(706,087)
Payments to employees for salaries and benefits		(889,717)	 (1,026,843)
Net cash provided(used) by operating activities		(965,178)	 (1,000,707)
CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:			
Refunds, rebates and merchandise sales		4,057	9,226
Loans to (from) MCRPD Sales tax revenue received		1,947 711,687	8,941 1,268,469
Donations received		909	431
Other non-operating expenses		(1,618)	(32,683)
Net cash provided by non-capital financing activities		716,982	 1,254,384
CASH FLOW FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIV	ITIES:		
Acquisition and construction of capital assets		-	-
Interest and fees paid on long-term financing		2	-
Net cash used by capital and related financing activities		2	-
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:			
Investment income received		-	 -
Net increase(decrease) in cash		(248,194)	253,677
CASH AND INVESTMENTS:			
Beginning of year		290,598	36,921
End of year	\$	42,404	\$ 290,598
PRESENTATION IN STATEMENT OF NET POSITION:			
Cash equivalents and investments	\$	42,404	\$ 290,598
Total	\$	42,404	\$ 290,598
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:			
Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to			
net cash provided (used) by operating activities:			
Operating income (loss)	\$	(926,608)	\$ (972,557)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)			
to net cash provided by operating activities			
Depreciation and amortization		-	-
Changes in current assets and liabilities: Accounts receivable		44,151	(20, 1.47)
Inventory		(18)	(30,147) 201
Due from the City of Fort Bragg		(10)	66,517
Accounts payable		(41,536)	(36,045)
Accrued payroll and benefits		(14,728)	(22,111)
Gift certificates payable		1,677	855
Unearned revenue		(13,206)	86
Compensated absences	. <u> </u>	(14,910)	 (7,506)
Net cash provided(used) by operating activities	\$	(965,178)	\$ (1,000,707)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.

#### CV Starr Community and Aquatic Center Financial Statements For the year ended June 30, 2020

#### Notes to Basic Financial Statements

#### 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of CV Starr Community and Aquatic Center (Center) have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to governmental enterprises classified as proprietary fund types. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. On June 15, 2015, GASB issued a codification of the existing Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards which, along with subsequent GASB pronouncements (Statements and Interpretations), constitutes GAAP for governmental units. The requirements of this Statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after June 15, 2015, and should be applied retroactively. Earlier application is permitted. The District applies all GASB pronouncements to its activities. The more significant of the Center's accounting policies are described below.

#### A. Description of the Reporting Entity

On March 6, 2012, the voters in the City of Fort Bragg passed Measure A which enacted Ordinance No. 902-2012, authorizing the City of Fort Bragg to levy a half-cent sales tax to make funds (sales tax revenues) available for the operation and maintenance of the CV Starr Community Center, including Sigrid & Harry Spath Aquatic Facility and surrounding property. The City of Fort Bragg took title to the CV Starr Community Center in May 2012 and on May 10, 2012 entered into an agreement with the Mendocino Coast Recreation and Park District for the operation and management of the Center to provide recreational services and activities for the health and welfare of City residents and others in the Mendocino Coast region.

The Center keeps their own books and records to account for the daily operations of the Center. Each month, a transfer of sales tax revenue is made from the City of Fort Bragg's CV Starr Center enterprise fund to the CV Starr Center's bank account.

#### B. Fund Accounting Classification and Basis of Accounting

On the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position, business-like activities are presented using the economic resources measurement focus. The accounting objectives of this measurement focus are the determination of net income, financial position, and cash flows. All assets and liabilities (whether current or noncurrent) associated with their activities are reported. Fund equity is classified as Net position.

Enterprise funds account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises where the intent is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges. The acquisition and capital improvement of the physical plant facilities required to provide these goods and services are financed from existing cash resources, the issuance of bonds, and cash flow from operations.

#### Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued

#### 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued

#### B. Fund Accounting Classification and Basis of Accounting, continued

The Center's operations are funded almost entirely by the sales tax revenues and operating revenues for program service charges. Sales tax revenues are accounted for when the Center receives the transfer from the City and not necessarily when the tax is collected.

#### C. Cash Equivalents and Investments

For the purposes of the Statement of Net Position and Statement of Cash Flows, "cash equivalents and investments" includes all demand, savings accounts, and certificates of deposits or short-term investments with an original maturity of three months or less.

The Center currently only invests excess cash in a non-interest earning bank account.

#### **D.** Fixed Assets

Purchased fixed assets are valued at cost where historical records are available and at an estimated historical cost where no historical records exist. Donated fixed assets are valued at their estimated fair value on the date received.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized. Improvements are capitalized. Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis over estimated useful lives ranging from 5 to 40 years.

#### E. Compensated Absences

The liability for vested vacation pay is recorded as an expense when the vacation is taken. Unused balances of vacation and sick time are accrued by employees when earned and may be subject to maximum accrual limits. Sick time accrued is paid based on the number of years of service to the employee when employment is terminated. There is no maximum accrual amount for sick time. Vacation time has a maximum accrual of 2 times the employee's annual accrual, dependent on the accrual rate of that employee, which is based on years of service. Upon termination of employment, sick time is paid out at a maximum of 50% and vacation is paid out at 100% of the accrued time available, depending on years of service. Compensatory time accrued is paid in full at the end of employment.

#### F. Comparative Data

Comparative data for the prior year has been presented in the accompanying financial statements in order to provide an understanding of changes in the Center's financial position and operations.

#### Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued

#### 2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS

#### A. Cash Deposits

The California Government Code requires California banks and savings and loan associations to secure government cash deposits by pledging securities as collateral. This Code states that collateral pledged in this manner shall have the effect of perfecting a security interest in such collateral superior to those of a general creditor. Thus, collateral is considered to be held in the government's name.

According to California law, the market value of pledged securities with banking institutions must equal at least 110% of the government's cash deposits. California law also allows institutions to secure government deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the government's total cash deposits. The government can waive collateral requirements for cash deposits, which are fully insured up to \$250,000 by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.

The Center's bank balance at June 30, 2020 was \$42,404.

#### **B.** Authorized Investments

The Center follows the City's investment policy for investment of available excess balances. Under provisions of the City's Investment Policy and in accordance with California Government Code Section 53601 & 53635 (a-n), the Center/City may invest or deposit in the following types of investments:

- Local Center Bonds
- US Treasury Obligations
- US Agencies
- Time Deposits
- Negotiable Certificates of Deposit
- Bankers' Acceptances
- Commercial Paper
- Local Agency Investment Funds (LAIF) of California State Treasurer's Office (State Pool)
- State of California Obligations
- CA Local Center Obligations
- Repurchase Agreements (Repos)
- Reverse Repurchase Agreements
- Medium-Term Notes (Corporate Debt Investment Grade)
- Mutual Funds
- Money Market Funds
- Collateralized Bank Deposits

#### CV Starr Community and Aquatic Center Financial Statements For the year ended June 30, 2020

#### Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued

#### 2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS, Continued

Criteria for selecting investments and the order of priority are:

- *Safety* The safety and risk associated with an investment refers to the potential loss of principal, interest, or a combination of these amounts. The Center/City only invests in those investments that they consider very safe.
- *Liquidity* This refers to the ability to "cash in" at any moment in time with a minimal possibility of losing some portion of principal or interest. Liquidity is an important investment quality especially when the need for unexpected funds occurs occasionally.
- *Yield* This refers to the rate of return and is the least important of the criteria. Safe, liquid investments do not enjoy the yields of investments not having those characteristics.

#### C. Safekeeping

Securities purchased from broker-dealers are held in third party safekeeping by the trust department of the broker-dealer or other designated third party trust in the Center/City's name and control, whenever possible.

#### 3. NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

The Center generally incurs debt to finance projects or purchase assets, which will have useful lives equal to or greater than the related debt. The Center's debt issues and transactions related to Center activities are summarized below and discussed in detail subsequently:

	Balance July 1, 2019 Additions			Retirements		Balance June 30, 2020		Due Within One Year		
Compensated absences	\$	30,128	\$		\$		\$	15,218	\$	30,128
Total	\$	30,128	\$	-	\$	(14,910)	\$	15,218	\$	30,128

#### 4. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Center is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts and injuries to employees or guests. The Center provides liability and workers' compensation insurance through California Association for Park and Recreation Indemnity. The California Association for Park and Recreation Indemnity is a joint powers agency comprised of California special districts, known as CAPRI. CAPRI provides liability and workers compensation coverage through a self-funded arrangement which requires that the Center pay quarterly and annual premiums to CAPRI for its insurance coverage. The following coverage was provided to the Center for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 coverage period:

#### CV Starr Community and Aquatic Center Financial Statements For the year ended June 30, 2020

#### Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued

#### 4. RISK MANAGEMENT, CONTINUED

Comprehensive General Liability (including Automobile Liability Coverage) coverage with a \$1,000,000 limit per occurrence for personal injury and property damage to which the coverage applies. CAPRI also purchases an excess policy from CSAC Excess Insurance Authority with limits of \$24 million excess of \$1million (General Liability, Automobile Liability and Public Officials and Employee Liability coverage). There is no deductible for General Liability claims.

Public Officials and Employee Liability coverage with a \$25,000,000 annual aggregate limit per member agency because of a wrongful act(s) which occurs during the coverage period for which the coverage applies. For each covered claim for employment practices liability there is a \$20,000 deductible payable by the member agency or other covered party which shall be applied to any payment for judgment or settlement and to payments for defense costs as they are incurred.

Workers' Compensation Coverage with \$250,000 in limits. CAPRI purchases an excess policy from CSAC-EIA with statutory limits. There is no deductible for the Workers Compensation Program.

The contributions paid by the Center for Liability and Workers' Compensation coverages for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020 and June 30 2019, was \$39,056 and \$40,040, respectively.

During the past three fiscal years, none of the above programs of protection have had settlements or judgments that exceed pooled or insured coverage for the Center. There have not been significant reductions in pooled or insured coverage from coverage in the prior year for the Center.

This page intentionally left blank.

## SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES

# **CV Starr Community Center** Schedule of Debt Service Coverage June 30, 2020 and 2019

In conjunction with the State of California Water Resources Control Board Loan, the Utility has covenanted to fix, prescribe and collect rates and charges for the CV service which will be sufficient to yield during the year net revenues equal to 110% of the debt service paid during the year. For purposes of this calculation, net revenues equals net income plus depreciation and amortization expenses. The debt service requirement for 2020 and 2020 is as follows:

	2020			2019		
Operating income	\$	(926,608)	\$	(972,557)		
Add:						
Depreciation and amortization expense		184,065		274,716		
CV connection fees		4,057		7,726		
Use of money and property		-	1	1,500		
Net revenue	\$	(738,486)	\$	(688,615)		
Debt service:						
Principal	\$	-	\$	-		
Interest		-		-		
Total debt service	\$	-	\$	-		
Calculated coverage		N/A		N/A		
Note: Restricted cash and investments consist of the following a	mounts:					
Cash with fiscal agents	\$	-	\$	-		
Amounts set aside for future debt repayment		-		-		
Total restricted cash and investments	\$	-	\$	-		

# CV Starr Community Center Reconciliation of Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes of Net Position to the City of Fort Bragg June 30, 2020

	I	CV Starr Financial Statements		City of Fort Bragg Enterprise Fund		
Change in Net Position	\$	(211,571)	\$	(418,908)		
Add Depreciation		-		683,414		
Less unallocated taxes		-		(469,268)		
Less interest revenue on City cash and investments		-		(15,227)		
Less unallocated revenues		-		(3,352)		
Add unallocated expenses		-		11,770		
	\$	(211,571)	\$	(211,571)		

Note: The books and records maintained by the Mendocino Coast Recreation and Park District for daily operations of the Center differ from the books and records maintained by the City of Fort Bragg to account for the Enterprise Fund. The following reconciliation demonstrates the accounting differences from the perspective of each of the two entities.

This page intentionally left blank.

JJACPA, Inc.



#### REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

A Professional Accounting Services Corp.

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council of the City of Fort Bragg Fort Bragg, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards* issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the accompanying financial statements of the CV Starr Community and Aquatic Center (Center), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Center's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated January 29, 2021.

#### **Internal Control Over Financial Reporting**

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Center's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Center's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Center's internal control.

A *deficiency in internal control* exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A *material weakness* is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Center's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A *significant deficiency* is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

#### **Compliance and Other Matters**

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Center's financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under *Government Auditing Standards*.

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Center's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the Center's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

.J.J.HCPH, Inc.

JJACPA, Inc. Dublin, CA

January 29, 2021